
PLANNING COMMITTEE

Tuesday 26 September 2017 at 6.00 pm 
Council Chamber, Ryedale House, Malton 

Agenda 

1 Apologies for absence 

2 Urgent Business 

3 Minutes (Pages 2 - 7)

4 Declarations of interest 

5 Schedule of Items to be determined by the Committee (Page 8)
 

6 17/00567/FUL - Land off Moorfields Lane Wombleton (Pages 9 - 72)

7 Any other business that the Chairman decides is urgent. 

8 List of Applications determined under delegated Powers. (Pages 73 - 81)

9 Update on Appeal Decisions (Pages 82 - 86)

Ryedale House
Malton
North Yorkshire
YO17 7HH

Tel.   01653 600666

E-mail:
ellis.mortimer@ryedale.gov.uk; 
karen.hood@ryedale.gov.uk

PLANNING 
COMMITTEE

l

Please Contact: Ellis 
Mortimer/Karen Hood
Extension:  271        

Public Document Pack



Planning Committee 1 Wednesday 30 August 2017

Planning Committee

Held at Council Chamber, Ryedale House, Malton
Wednesday 30 August 2017

Present

Councillors  Joy Andrews, Burr MBE, Cleary (Vice-Chairman), Farnell (Chairman), 
Goodrick, Hope, Jainu-Deen, Elizabeth Shields, Wainwright (Substitute) and Windress

Substitutes: Councillor CR Wainwright

In Attendance

Gary Housden, Ellis Mortimer and Anthony Winship

Minutes

51 Apologies for absence

Apologies were received from Councillor Maud.

52 Minutes

DECISION

That the minutes of the Planning Committee held on 01 August 2017 be 
approved and signed as a correct record.

[For 7 Against 0 Abstain 3]

53 Urgent Business

There was no urgent business.

54 Declarations of Interest

Councillor Item
Farnell 5, 12
J Andrews 9
Mrs Shields 5, 7, 9
Burr 15
Goodrick 5, 9, 15
Cleary 9, 10
Jain-Deen 5
Windress 5, 9, 12
Hope 5, 9

Page 2

Agenda Item 3



Planning Committee 2 Wednesday 30 August 2017

55 Report of TPO working party

Decision

To confirm Tree Preservation Order No: 346/2017

[For 8 Against 2 Abstain 0]

In accordance with the Members Code of Conduct Councillors Farnell, Mrs 
Shields, Goodrick, Jainu-Deen, Windress and Hope declared a personal non-
pecuniary but not prejudicial interest.

56 Schedule of items to be determined by the Committee

The Head of Planning submitted a list (previously circulated) of the applications 
for planning permission with recommendations thereon.

57 17/00586/OUT - Land Adj 42 Vine Street Norton Malton

17/00586/OUT - Residential development of 3no terraced dwellings with 
vehicular access and alterations to domestic curtilages of existing terrace of 4 
dwellings (site area 0.1ha)

Decision

PERMISSION GRANTED - Subject to conditions as recommended

[For 7 Against 2 Abstain 1]

In accordance with the Members Code of Conduct Councillor Mrs Shields 
declared a personal non-pecuniary but not prejudicial interest

58 17/00459/HOUSE - Cragside  Crambeck Welburn Malton YO60 7EL

17/00459/HOUSE - Erection of detached single storey garage

Decision

PERMISSION GRANTED - Subject to conditions as recommended and two 
additional highways conditions

[For 10 Against 0 Abstain 0]
 

Page 3



Planning Committee 3 Wednesday 30 August 2017

59 17/00567/FUL - Land Off Moorfields Lane Wombleton

17/00567/FUL - Erection of 6no. three bedroom holiday lodges and 3no. two 
bedroom holiday lodges with associated driveway, parking, landscaping and 
formation of vehicular access

Decision

SITE VISIT - 12 September 2017

[For 10 Against 0 Abstain 0]

In accordance with the Members Code of Conduct Councillors J Andrews, Mrs 
Shields, Goodrick, Cleary, Windress and Hope declared a personal non-
pecuniary but not prejudicial interest.

60 17/00689/73A - Low Meadow Church Lane Welburn Malton  YO60 7EG

17/00689/73A - Variation of Condition 05 of approval 16/00053/HOUSE dated 
21.03.2016 to replace Drawing No 15-1118-4 with Drawing No 15-118-4a

Decision 

PERMISSION GRANTED - Subject to conditions as recommended

[For 8 Against 2 Abstain 0]

In accordance with the Members Code of Conduct Councillor Cleary declared a 
personal non-pecuniary but not prejudicial interest.

61 17/00703/HOUSE - Box Tree Cottage Church End Sheriff Hutton YO60 6SY

17/00703/HOUSE - Erection of a two storey extension to rear elevation

Decision

PERMISSION GRANTED - Subject to conditions as recommended

[For 10 Against 0 Abstain0]

Page 4



Planning Committee 4 Wednesday 30 August 2017

62 17/00719/FUL - Land Adjacent 8 Valley View Ampleforth

17/00719/FUL - Erection of a detached three-bedroom dwelling following 
demolition of existing attached outbuilding and detached garage

Decision

PERMISSION GRANTED - Subject to conditions as recommended.

[For 10 Against 0 Abstain 0]

In accordance with the Members Code of Conduct Councillors Farnell and 
Windress declared a personal non-pecuniary but not prejudicial interest.

63 17/00739/HOUSE - 18 The Mount Malton YO17 7ND

17/00739/HOUSE - Erection of single storey side extension to replace existing 
lean-to extension, removal of 2no. chimney stacks, replacement of all windows 
with timber double glazed sash windows with enlargement of and addition of a 
window to the east elevation and alteration of an existing window to form 
French doors. 

Decision

PERMISSION GRANTED - Subject to conditions as recommended.

[For 10                                       Against 0                                         Abstain 0]

64 17/00752/HOUSE - Montreal Grange  Coulton Lane Coulton Helmsley YO62 
4NQ

17/00752/HOUSE - Erection of single storey extension to south elevation of 
'east wing' and raising of roof height to include installation of rooflights to south 
elevation roofslope and dormer windows and rooflights to north elevation 
roofslope, together with installation of timber framed glazing to east gable.

Decision

PERMISSION GRANTED - Subject to conditions as recommended

[For 10 Against 0 Abstain 0]

Page 5



Planning Committee 5 Wednesday 30 August 2017

65 Minerals and Waste Joint  Plan. Changes to publication  draft

Decision

This council supports the proposed changes to the publication draft of the 
Minerals and Waste Joint Plan at paragraph 5.1 30 (Proposed Change number 
68) and to Appendix 2 (Proposed Change number 113) as outlined in 
paragraphs 6.4 and 6.5 of the report to the Planning Committee.

[For 10 Against 0 Abstain 0]

In accordance with the Members Code of Conduct Councillors Burr and 
Goodrick declared a personal non-pecuniary but not prejudicial interest. 

66 Enforcement report - Land at Pasture Lane Hovingham North Yorkshire

Decision

1. To delegate to the Head of Planning the authority to take direct planning 
enforcement action under section 178 of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990 (as amended) and all relevant regulations and to make arrangements for 
the laying of a wearing course to secure compliance with the requirements 
which are set out it the Enforcement Notice dated 18 August 2016 and that a 
legal charge be placed on the property to recover the Council's expenses.

2. To authorise legal action for the recovery of expenses and overheads 
incurred in taking direct action to secure compliance with the requirements 
which are set out in the Enforcement Notice dated 18 August 2016 from the 
land owner and any other liable person.

[For 10 Against 0 Abstain 0]

67 List of applications determined under delegated powers

The Head of Planning submitted for information (previously circulated) a list 
which gave details of the applications determined by the Head of Planning in 
accordance with the scheme of delegated decisions.

68 Update on Appeal Decisions

Members were advised of the following appeal decisions:

Page 6



Planning Committee 6 Wednesday 30 August 2017

Appeal ref: APP/Y2736/W/17/3172848 - Site Adjacent to The Paddocks,  
        Weaverthorpe

Appeal ref: APP/Y2736/W/17/3171618 - Land East of Swinton Road Swinton

Appeal ref: APP/Y2736/W/17/3173569 - West View Underbrow Scagglethorpe

69 Any other business

There was no other business

Meeting closed at 8:10pm

Page 7



26/09/17

APPLICATIONS TO BE DETERMINED BY RYEDALE DISTRICT COUNCIL

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 

17/00567/FUL

Erection of 6no. three bedroom holiday lodges and 3no. two bedroom 

holiday lodges with associated driveway, parking, landscaping and 

formation of vehicular access

6

Application No:

Proposal:

Application Site: Land Off Moorfields Lane Wombleton Kirkbymoorside  

Page 8

Agenda Item 5



_________________________________________________________________________________________

 PLANNING COMMITTEE

30 August 2017

RYEDALE DISTRICT COUNCIL
PLANNING COMMITTEE

SCHEDULE OF ITEMS TO BE DETERMINED BY THE COMMITTEE

PLANS WILL BE AVAILABLE FOR INSPECTION 30 MINUTES BEFORE THE MEETING

Item Number: 6
Application No: 17/00567/FUL
Parish: Wombleton Parish Council
Appn. Type: Full Application
Applicant: Herbert Pension Fund
Proposal: Erection of 6no. three bedroom holiday lodges and 3no. two bedroom holiday 

lodges with associated driveway, parking, landscaping and formation of 
vehicular access

Location: Land Off Moorfields Lane Wombleton Kirkbymoorside 

Registration Date: 22 May 2017 8/13 Week Expiry Date: 17 July 2017
Case Officer: Gary Housden Ext: 307

CONSULTATIONS:

Caravan (Housing) No objection in principle
Countryside Officer No views received
Yorkshire Water Land Use Planning No views received
Parish Council No views received
Highways North Yorkshire Recommend conditions

Neighbour responses: Mrs Rowena Robinson, Mr & Mrs RS Ham, Mr James 
Willoughby, Mr Don Crabtree, Mrs Tracey Wheldon, Miss 
Anna Foster, Mr Jack Woodhead, Mr & Mrs Mercer, Mr & 
Mrs David & Brenda Willoughby, Mr Charlie Woodhead, 
Mr Tom Vertigans, Mr And Mrs W Foster, Mr Josh Weaver, 
Mr Adam Willoughby, Mr & Mrs RS Ham,

 Overall Expiry Date: 24 September 2017

This planning application was deferred from the last Planning Committee meeting in order for Members 
to undertake a Site Inspection. Members are asked to refer to the Officer report previously circulated for 
a detailed appraisal of the proposal. 

Since the earlier report was prepared, there has been one further letter of objection, the issues raised in 
that letter have already been considered in the earlier report. The agent has also submitted a Plan 
showing the projected shading by the landscaping in 20 years  time in relation to the nearest property, 
this plan is appended to this report. 

In addition, the agent has submitted a letter and attached plan following the Site Inspection to explain 
why the applicant does not wish to amend the application and utilise the existing field access 
arrangements, these documents are also appended to this report.

 In accordance with the earlier Officer appraisal this application is recommended for approval.

Page 9

Agenda Item 6



_________________________________________________________________________________________

 PLANNING COMMITTEE

30 August 2017

RECOMMENDATION: Approval 

1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun on or before .

Reason:- To ensure compliance with Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase 
Act 2004

2 Before the development hereby permitted is commenced, details and samples of the materials 
to be used on the exterior of the proposed building(s) shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority.  No variation of the approved materials shall be 
undertaken without the express consent in writing of the Local Planning Authority.

Reason:- To ensure a satisfactory external appearance.

3 The proposed planting of new trees, hedges and shrubs on drawing No. W.WG.1.5 rev A, and 
accompanying specification, shall be implemented within the first available planting season 
(March-November) following completion of the development. In the event of any plant 
material dying or become seriously diseased or damaged within a 5 year period of planting, it 
shall be replaced with similar species to a specification that shall be first agreed in writing 
with the Local Planning Authority unless the Local Planning authority give written consent to 
any variation.

4 There shall be no access or egress by any vehicles between the highway and the application 
site (except for the purposes of constructing the initial site access) until splays are provided 
giving clear visibility of  90 metres measured along both channel lines of the major road 
Moorfields Lane from a point measured 2.4 metres down the centre line of the access road.  
The eye height will be 1.05 metres and the object height shall be 0.6 metres.  Once created, 
these visibility areas shall be maintained clear of any obstruction and retained for their 
intended purpose at all times.

Reason:- In accordance with Policy SP20 and in the interests of road safety.

5 Unless otherwise approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, there shall be no 
excavation or other groundworks, except for investigative works, or the depositing of material 
on the site in connection with the construction of the access road or building(s) or other works 
until:

(i) The details of the required highway improvement works, listed below, have been submitted 
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority in consultation with the Highway 
Authority.

a. Provision of 2 no. vehicular passing places, one on Moorfields Lane approximately halfway 
between the site access and junction with Common Lane and one on Common Lane 
approximately halfway between the pumping station and bend in the road where the 30mph 
local speed limit signs are placed. Each passing place to be constructed to provide an overall 
carriageway width of 5.5 metres, for a minimum distance of 10 metres, plus 1:3 end tapers, 
and constructed in accordance with the Specification of the highway authority and as shown 
on Drawing Number dev 4959/2/spec.

(ii) Not Used

(iii) A programme for the completion of the proposed works has been submitted.

Reason:- In accordance with Policy  SP20 and to ensure that the details are satisfactory in the 

Page 10



_________________________________________________________________________________________

 PLANNING COMMITTEE

30 August 2017

interests of the safety and convenience of highway users.

6 Unless otherwise approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority in consultation with 
the Highway Authority, the development shall not be brought into use until the following 
highway works have been constructed in accordance with the details approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority under condition (2) above.

Provision of passing places as described in the condition

Reason:- In accordance with Policy SP20 and in the interests of the safety and convenience of 
highway users.

7 Notwithstanding the provision of any Town & Country Planning General Permitted or Special 
Development Order for the time being in force, the areas shown on W-WG-1.5 - Rev. A  for 
parking spaces, turning areas and access shall be kept available for their intended purpose at 
all times.

Reason:- In accordance with Policy SP20 and to ensure these areas are kept available for their 
intended use in the interests of highway safety and the general amenity of the development.

8 There shall be no access or egress by any vehicles between the highway and the application 
site until details of the precautions to be taken to prevent the deposit of mud, grit and dirt on 
public highways by vehicles travelling to and from the site have been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority in consultation with the Highway 
Authority.  These facilities shall include the provision of wheel washing facilities where 
considered necessary by the Local Planning Authority in consultation with the Highway 
Authority.  These precautions shall be made available before any excavation or depositing of 
material in connection with the construction commences on the site, and be kept available and 
in full working order and used until such time as the Local Planning Authority in consultation 
with the Highway Authority agrees in writing to their withdrawal.

Reason:- In accordance with Policy SP20 and to ensure that no mud or other debris is 
deposited on the carriageway in the interests of highway safety.

9 Prior to the development being brought into use, a Travel Plan shall have been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority in consultation with the Highway 
Authority.  This shall include:

(i) the appointment of a travel co-ordinator
(ii) a partnership approach to influence travel behaviour
(iii) measures to encourage the use of alternative modes of transport other than the private car 
by persons associated with the site
(iv) provision of up-to-date details of public transport services
(v) continual appraisal of travel patterns and measures provided through the travel plan
(vi) improved safety for vulnerable road users
(vii) a reduction in all vehicle trips and mileage 
(viii) a programme for the implementation of such measures and any proposed physical works
(ix) procedures for monitoring the uptake of such modes of transport and for providing 
evidence of compliance.

The Travel Plan shall be implemented and the development shall thereafter be carried out and 
operated in accordance with the Travel Plan.

Reason:- In accordance with Policy SP20 and to establish measures to encourage more 
sustainable non-car modes of transport

Page 11



_________________________________________________________________________________________

 PLANNING COMMITTEE

30 August 2017

10 The accommodation hereby permitted shall be occupied for holiday purposes only; and not as 
a person's sole or main place of residence.

Reason: It is not considered that the application site is suitable for permanent residential use 
because it is located in open countryside, in an area where permanent residential development 
is only permitted in exceptional circumstances and the application has only been considered in 
relation to holiday use, and to satisfy the requirements of Policies SP20 and SP21 of the 
Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy.

11 The accommodation hereby permitted shall be available for commercial let for at least 140 
days a year and no let must exceed a total of 31 days in any one calendar year. 

Reason: It is not considered that the application site is suitable for permanent residential use 
because it is located in open countryside, in an area where permanent residential development 
is only permitted in exceptional circumstances and the application has only been considered in 
relation to holiday use, and to satisfy the requirements of Policies SP20 and SP21 of the 
Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. 

12 The owners/operators of the accommodation hereby permitted shall maintain an up-to-date 
register of lettings/occupation and advertising will be maintained at all times and shall be 
made available for inspection to an officer of the Local Planning Authority on request. The 
register shall include full details of the following: 

 the main address(es) of all the occupiers of the accommodation hereby permitted
 the start date of every one of the letting/occupation of all the occupiers of the 

accommodation hereby permitted
 supporting evidence of the main address(es) of all the occupiers of the accommodation 

hereby permitted

Reason: It is not considered that the application site is suitable for permanent residential use 
because it is located in open countryside, in an area where permanent residential development 
is only permitted in exceptional circumstances and the application has only been considered in 
relation to holiday use, and to satisfy the requirements of Policies SP20 and SP21 of the 
Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy.

13 Details of external lighting to be agreed

14 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following 
approved plan(s):.

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

15 Background Papers:

Adopted Ryedale Local Plan 2002
Local Plan Strategy 2013
National Planning Policy Framework
Responses from consultees and interested parties

INFORMATIVE(S)

Page 12



_________________________________________________________________________________________

 PLANNING COMMITTEE

30 August 2017

1 An explanation of terms used above is available from the Highway Authority.

2 You are advised that a separate licence will be required from the Highway Authority in order 
to allow any works in the adopted highway to be carried out. The 'Specification for Housing 
and Industrial Estate Roads and Private Street Works' published by North Yorkshire County 
Council, the Highway Authority, is available at the County Council's offices. The local office 
of the Highway Authority will also be pleased to provide the detailed constructional 
specification referred to in this condition.

Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



RYEDALE DISTRICT COUNCIL

APPLICATIONS DETERMINED BY THE DEVELOPMENT CONTROL MANAGER

IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE  SCHEME OF DELEGATED DECISIONS

 

1.

Application No: 15/01025/OUT Decision:  Approval

Parish: Kirkbymoorside Town Council

Applicant: CRG Insolvency And Financial Reco (Mr Charles Ranby-Gorwood)

Location: Land Adj to 12  Kirby Mills Road Kirkby Mills Kirkbymoorside YO62 6NP

Proposal: Erection of a dwelling (site area 0.0165 ha)
_______________________________________________________________________________________________

2.

Application No: 16/01858/HOUSE Decision:  Approval

Parish: Terrington Parish Council

Applicant: Mr Trevor Watson

Location: The Pheasantry  Main Street Terrington Malton YO60 6PU

Proposal: Replacement of existing ground floor rear window by a timber entrance door with 

side window
_______________________________________________________________________________________________

3.

Application No: 16/02043/FUL Decision:  Approval

Parish: Luttons Parish Council

Applicant: Ms Lynne Porter

Location: Old Manor Farm  Main Road Helperthorpe Malton YO17 8TQ

Proposal: Change of use and alterations to existing agricultural building and part of existing 

fold yard to form a one bedroom self-contained residential annexe and domestic 

curtilage
_______________________________________________________________________________________________

4.

Application No: 17/00023/HOUSE Decision:  Approval

Parish: Westow Parish Council

Applicant: Mr Walter Bratley

Location: 4 Westfield Main Street Westow Malton YO60 7NG 

Proposal: Erection of a front porch
_______________________________________________________________________________________________

5.

Application No: 17/00089/FUL Decision:  Approval

Parish: Pickering Town Council

Applicant: Mr Peter Mills

Location: Broates Farm  Swainsea Lane Pickering North Yorkshire YO18 8PW

Proposal: Change of use and alterations to existing agricultural buildings to include the 

removal of central fold yard structure allowing the formation of 3no. one-bedroom 

holiday cottages and installation of biomass heating system
_______________________________________________________________________________________________

6.

Application No: 17/00090/LBC Decision:  Approval

Parish: Pickering Town Council

Applicant: Mr Peter Mills

Location: Broates Farm  Swainsea Lane Pickering North Yorkshire YO18 8PW

Proposal: External and internal alterations to attached barns to form 3no. holiday cottages to 

include partial re-roofing following removal of central fold yard structure together 

with installation of timber-framed doors and windows and additional wallsPage 73

Agenda Item 8



_______________________________________________________________________________________________

7.

Application No: 17/00498/FUL Decision:  Approval

Parish: Gilling East Parish Council

Applicant: H E Hornsea & Son (Mr Howard Galtrey)

Location: Coney Hill Farm  Gilling East YO62 4HY

Proposal: Change of use and alteration of first floor barn to a three bedroom apartment.
_______________________________________________________________________________________________

8.

Application No: 17/00570/FUL Decision:  Approval

Parish: Helmsley Town Council

Applicant: Co-op Estates (Mr Chris Beebe)

Location: 3 - 4 Market Place Helmsley York North Yorkshire YO62 5BH

Proposal: Erection of link extension and plant room to the rear, installation of rear external 

staircase to first floor, alterations to shop front to include repositioning of main 

entrance and internal alterations to include removal of internal walls and lowering 

of ground floor levels.
_______________________________________________________________________________________________

9.

Application No: 17/00571/LBC Decision:  Approval

Parish: Helmsley Town Council

Applicant: Co-op Estates (Mr Chris Beebe)

Location: 3 - 4 Market Place Helmsley York North Yorkshire YO62 5BH

Proposal: Erection of link extension and plant room to the rear, installation of rear external 

staircase to first floor, alterations to shop front to include repositioning of main 

entrance and internal alterations to include removal of internal walls and lowering 

of ground floor levels.
_______________________________________________________________________________________________

10.

Application No: 17/00670/FUL Decision:  Approval

Parish: Kirkbymoorside Town Council

Applicant: Yorkshire Housing

Location: 1-18 Town Farm Close Kirkbymoorside North Yorkshire YO62 6AU

Proposal: Replacement of all existing windows, front entrance doors and rear patio doors with 

PVCU windows and doors (revised details to approval 16/01590/FUL dated 

11.11.2016)
_______________________________________________________________________________________________

11.

Application No: 17/00690/FUL Decision:  Approval

Parish: Kirkbymoorside Town Council

Applicant: Mr A Collier

Location: Police Station West Fields Kirkbymoorside North Yorkshire YO62 6AQ

Proposal: Change of use and alteration to form a 2 bedroom dwelling
_______________________________________________________________________________________________

12.

Application No: 17/00718/FUL Decision:  Approval

Parish: Norton Town Council

Applicant: Mr & Mrs Michael & Sara Ashby-Arnold

Location: 2 Parliament Street Norton Malton North Yorkshire YO17 9HG

Proposal: Change of use and alteration of first floor showroom to form 2no. one bedroom 

apartments
_______________________________________________________________________________________________

13.

Application No: 17/00721/FUL Decision:  ApprovalPage 74



Parish: Cropton Parish Council

Applicant: Mr & Mrs Carter

Location: Chestnut Tree  High Street Cropton Pickering YO18 8HH

Proposal: Change of use of former chapel to domestic garage, together with change of use of 

existing attached garage to form kitchen extension including raising the height of 

the roof by 400mm
_______________________________________________________________________________________________

14.

Application No: 17/00748/HOUSE Decision:  Approval

Parish: Malton Town Council

Applicant: Mr & Mrs P Scholefield

Location: 7 Middlecave Drive Malton North Yorkshire YO17 7BB

Proposal: Erection of a single storey rear extension to replace existing conservatory
_______________________________________________________________________________________________

15.

Application No: 17/00740/FUL Decision:  Approval

Parish: Pickering Town Council

Applicant: Mr Nadar Rajab

Location: 7 Park Street Pickering North Yorkshire YO18 7AJ

Proposal: Replacement of existing shop front to enable sub-division of the premises into two 

units with separate access to the first floor flat and installation of 4no. roof lights
_______________________________________________________________________________________________

16.

Application No: 17/00746/HOUSE Decision:  Approval

Parish: Sheriff Hutton Parish Council

Applicant: Mr & Mrs Tracey Payne

Location: Gower Hall Farm Thornton Le Clay To Foston Road Thornton Le Clay Malton 

North Yorkshire YO60 7QD

Proposal: Erection of conservatory to rear elevation of residential annex
_______________________________________________________________________________________________

17.

Application No: 17/00759/FUL Decision:  Approval

Parish: Bulmer Parish Council

Applicant: Mr Andrew Porter

Location: Swallows Farm Wandales Lane Bulmer North Yorkshire YO60 7BN

Proposal: Erection of a general purpose agricultural storage building
_______________________________________________________________________________________________

18.

Application No: 17/00751/FUL Decision:  Approval

Parish: Sheriff Hutton Parish Council

Applicant: Mrs Tracey Payne

Location: Gower Hall Farm  Thornton Le Clay To Foston Road Thornton Le Clay Malton 

YO60 7QD

Proposal: Change of use of agricultural land to form a 50m x 30m manege (all weather riding 

area).
_______________________________________________________________________________________________

19.

Application No: 17/00754/HOUSE Decision:  Approval

Parish: Malton Town Council

Applicant: Debbie Smith & Geoff Coe

Location: 12 Crabtree Drive Malton North Yorkshire YO17 7FQ

Proposal: Erection of a single storey rear and side extension with link to existing detached 

double garage
_______________________________________________________________________________________________

Page 75



20.

Application No: 17/00758/HOUSE Decision:  Approval

Parish: Warthill Parish Council

Applicant: Mr M. Fowler

Location: Edge Of The Wood  Northgate Lane Warthill YO19 5XR

Proposal: Erection of detached double garage following demolition of existing garage.
_______________________________________________________________________________________________

21.

Application No: 17/00762/FUL Decision:  Approval

Parish: Pickering Town Council

Applicant: Cuppacoff Ltd

Location: 15 Market Place Pickering YO18 7AE

Proposal: Change of use of an area of public highway to form an outdoor seating area in 

connection with the existing coffee shop
_______________________________________________________________________________________________

22.

Application No: 17/00766/HOUSE Decision:  Approval

Parish: Welburn (Kirkbymoorside) Parish Meeting

Applicant: Mr & Mrs Marshall

Location: Welburn House  Back Lane Welburn Kirkbymoorside YO62 7HH

Proposal: Erection of a balustraded single storey rear garden room extension and surfacing 

with tarmac of existing gravelled driveway from the highway up to the existing 

gates
_______________________________________________________________________________________________

23.

Application No: 17/00768/HOUSE Decision:  Approval

Parish: Kirkbymoorside Town Council

Applicant: Mr D Rivis

Location: 4 Queens Way Kirkbymoorside North Yorkshire YO62 6EB

Proposal: Erection of a two storey side extension
_______________________________________________________________________________________________

24.

Application No: 17/00769/HOUSE Decision:  Approval

Parish: Scrayingham Parish Council

Applicant: Caroline du Plessis

Location: Yggdrasil  Main Street Scrayingham Malton YO41 1JD

Proposal: Erection of timber framed gazebo.
_______________________________________________________________________________________________

25.

Application No: 17/00776/LBC Decision:  Approval

Parish: Thorpe Bassett Parish Meeting

Applicant: Mr Richard Legard

Location: Wold View House Thorpe Bassett Lane Thorpe Bassett Malton North Yorkshire 

YO17 8LU

Proposal: External and internal alterations to include formation of dormer window to rear roof 

slope of lower part of dwelling, formation of first floor internal opening to allow 

creation of en-suite/dressing room and installation of second floor stud walling to 

form an en-suite
_______________________________________________________________________________________________

26.

Application No: 17/00780/OUT Decision:  Approval

Parish: Beadlam Parish Council

Applicant: Mrs Jean Kershaw

Location: Land Adj Kirklands Howldale Lane Beadlam York North Yorkshire YO62 7SS 

Proposal: Erection of a detached bungalow (site area 0.06ha).Page 76



_______________________________________________________________________________________________

27.

Application No: 17/00781/LBC Decision:  Approval

Parish: Malton Town Council

Applicant: Mr Keith Davies

Location: Gannock House 20 Town Street Old Malton Malton North Yorkshire YO17 7HB

Proposal: Remove redundant external door and infill with handmade clamp bricks and lime 

mortar.
_______________________________________________________________________________________________

28.

Application No: 17/00786/ADV Decision:  Approval

Parish: Malton Town Council

Applicant: Mr Keith Davies

Location: Talbot Yard Yorkersgate Malton North Yorkshire 

Proposal: Alterations to existing entrance signage to allow an additional 2no. advertisements.
_______________________________________________________________________________________________

29.

Application No: 17/00788/HOUSE Decision:  Approval

Parish: Flaxton Parish Council

Applicant: Mr Will Crowther

Location: Wayside Rice Lane Flaxton North Yorkshire YO60 7RN

Proposal: Erection of part two storey/part first floor extension to existing attached garage, 

single storey extension to side and rear elevations and extension of front entrance 

porch together with external alterations to include part re-render of existing 

elevations, replacement of concrete roof tiles with slate to match the extensions and 

replacement windows.
_______________________________________________________________________________________________

30.

Application No: 17/00846/LBC Decision:  Approval

Parish: Malton Town Council

Applicant: Mr Keith Davies

Location: Talbot Yard Yorkersgate Malton North Yorkshire 

Proposal: Alterations to existing entrance signage to allow an additional 2no. advertisments.
_______________________________________________________________________________________________

31.

Application No: 17/00790/HOUSE Decision:  Approval

Parish: Broughton Parish Meeting

Applicant: Mr Colin Magson

Location: 14 Manor Park Broughton Malton North Yorkshire YO17 6QL

Proposal: Erection of single storey garden room extension to the rear and extension of 

existing detached garage.
_______________________________________________________________________________________________

32.

Application No: 17/00794/HOUSE Decision:  Approval

Parish: Bulmer Parish Council

Applicant: Mr & Mrs K Hudson

Location: The Ridge Road From Bulmer Beck To Bulmer Bulmer North Yorkshire YO60 

7BN

Proposal: Erection of single storey rear extension.
_______________________________________________________________________________________________

33.

Application No: 17/00911/TPO Decision:  Approval

Parish: Oswaldkirk Parish Meeting

Applicant: Lord St Oswald Page 77



Location: East Newton Hall Farm Leysthorpe To Nunnington Oswaldkirk Helmsley North 

Yorkshire YO62 5YE

Proposal: Removal  of stems overhanging house/buildings or if necessary remove to a point 

1m above pollard union to T1 (Sycamore) within TPO No 43/1982
_______________________________________________________________________________________________

34.

Application No: 17/00795/HOUSE Decision:  Approval

Parish: Helmsley Town Council

Applicant: Mr Mark Higham

Location: 1 Ryegate Helmsley YO62 5AA

Proposal: Re-roofing of existing flat roof sections to the rear, to include installation of 3no. 

roof lanterns
_______________________________________________________________________________________________

35.

Application No: 17/00797/FUL Decision:  Refusal

Parish: Ampleforth Parish Council

Applicant: Mr John Seeger

Location: Land East Of The Forge  Mill Lane Ampleforth YO62 4EJ

Proposal: Change of use and alteration of greenhouse and surrounding land to form a three 

bedroom dwelling with a domestic curtilage (revised details to refusal 

16/01875/FUL dated 17.03.2017)
_______________________________________________________________________________________________

36.

Application No: 17/00798/FUL Decision:  Approval

Parish: Aislaby, Middleton & Wrelton Parish

Applicant: J M & A Stead

Location: The Sawmill Aislaby To Wrelton Cliff Road Wrelton Pickering North Yorkshire 

YO18 8PG

Proposal: Erection of an agricultural building for storage and the housing of livestock
_______________________________________________________________________________________________

37.

Application No: 17/00801/HOUSE Decision:  Approval

Parish: Hovingham Parish Council

Applicant: Mr Wharton

Location: Torridon  8 Mossburn Drive Hovingham YO62 4LY

Proposal: Erection of a two storey rear extension with loft conversion and extension of garage 

roof to link to main dwelling
_______________________________________________________________________________________________

38.

Application No: 17/00819/LBC Decision:  Approval

Parish: Pickering Town Council

Applicant: Mr Michael Saul

Location: Vivers Mill Mill Lane Pickering North Yorkshire YO18 8DJ

Proposal: Installation of bathroom fittings to first floor bedroom and second floor bedroom
_______________________________________________________________________________________________

39.

Application No: 17/00812/HOUSE Decision:  Approval

Parish: Oswaldkirk Parish Meeting

Applicant: Mr Jake Elmhirst

Location: Oswaldkirk Hall  Main Street Oswaldkirk Helmsley YO62 5XT

Proposal: Infilling of existing swimming pool to allow erection of bespoke Victorian framed 

greenhouse
_______________________________________________________________________________________________

40. Page 78



Application No: 17/00813/LBC Decision:  Approval

Parish: Oswaldkirk Parish Meeting

Applicant: Mr Jake Elmhirst

Location: Oswaldkirk Hall  Main Street Oswaldkirk Helmsley YO62 5XT

Proposal: Infilling of existing swimming pool to allow erection of bespoke Victorian framed 

greenhouse
_______________________________________________________________________________________________

41.

Application No: 17/00827/HOUSE Decision:  Approval

Parish: Hovingham Parish Council

Applicant: Mr Andrew Moutrie

Location: Deer Keepers Lodge  Parkside Lane Hovingham Helmsley YO62 4JD

Proposal: Erection of a part two storey/part single storey extension including garaging and 

raised terrace to south elevation following removal of existing rear wall, wood store 

and garden wall to include some regrading of land, erection of retaining walls and 

areas of resurfacing in a mix of materials (revised details to approval 

15/01237/HOUSE dated 18.12.2015)
_______________________________________________________________________________________________

42.

Application No: 17/00828/LBC Decision:  Approval

Parish: Hovingham Parish Council

Applicant: Mr Andrew Moutrie

Location: Deer Keepers Lodge  Parkside Lane Hovingham Helmsley YO62 4JD

Proposal: External alterations to include erection of a part two storey/part single storey 

extension including garaging and raised terrace to south elevation following 

removal of existing rear wall, wood store and garden wall to include some 

regrading of land, erection of retaining walls and areas of resurfacing in a mix of 

materials (revised details to approval 15/01238/LBC dated 18.12.2015)
_______________________________________________________________________________________________

43.

Application No: 17/00836/HOUSE Decision:  Approval

Parish: Lillings Ambo Parish Council

Applicant: Mr John Hollowood

Location: Toft Farm Goose Track Lane West Lilling North Yorkshire YO60 6RP

Proposal: Erection of 2no. orangery extensions to rear gables of dwelling
_______________________________________________________________________________________________

44.

Application No: 17/00839/73 Decision:  Approval

Parish: Pockley Parish Council

Applicant: Haxton Developments Ltd

Location: Low Farm  Main Street Pockley Helmsley YO62 7TE

Proposal: Variation of Condition 02 of approval 08/00321/FUL dated 30.05.2008 to allow the 

accommodation to be used as ancillary to the dwelling as approved by 

16/00814/GPAGB dated 27.06.2016
_______________________________________________________________________________________________

45.

Application No: 17/00915/HOUSE Decision:  Approval

Parish: Sheriff Hutton Parish Council

Applicant: Mr M Collins

Location: 39 The Croft Sheriff Hutton North Yorkshire YO60 6SQ

Proposal: Erection of a detached garage to replace an existing detached garage
_______________________________________________________________________________________________

46.

Application No: 17/00849/FUL Decision:  Approval

Parish: Kirkbymoorside Town CouncilPage 79



Applicant: Mr John Hansen

Location: The Bungalow  Swineherd Lane Kirkbymoorside YO62 6LR

Proposal: Erection of detached 3 bedroom dwelling with integral garage together with 

formation of 2no. parking spaces, following demolition of existing dwelling (Part 

Retrospective)
_______________________________________________________________________________________________

47.

Application No: 17/00854/FUL Decision:  Approval

Parish: Sinnington Parish Council

Applicant: Mrs Gail Auton

Location: Land Off Main Street Sinnington Pickering  

Proposal: Change of use of agricultural land to equestrian use to include erection of block of 

2no. stables, field shelter and hay store incorporating retention of existing field 

shelter.
_______________________________________________________________________________________________

48.

Application No: 17/00860/FUL Decision:  Approval

Parish: Welburn (Kirkbymoorside) Parish Meeting

Applicant: Mr William Shaw

Location: Land Off Flatts Lane Welburn Kirkbymoorside  

Proposal: Change of use and alteration of agricultural buildings to form 1no. 3 bedroom 

agricultural workers dwelling to include a 1 bedroom self-contained guest room, 

and 1no. 4 bedroom agricultural workers dwelling together with demolition of 

covered fold yard to provide amenity space.
_______________________________________________________________________________________________

49.

Application No: 17/00862/FUL Decision:  Refusal

Parish: Kirby Misperton Parish Council

Applicant: Mr & Mrs James Phillips

Location: Land At Kirby Misperton Road Kirby Misperton Malton North Yorkshire 

Proposal: Siting of 3no. 2 bedroom holiday lodges with parking and amenity areas.
_______________________________________________________________________________________________

50.

Application No: 17/00866/FUL Decision:  Approval

Parish: Norton Town Council

Applicant: (Mr Wayne Butler) Willow Developments

Location: Leat House 71 Welham Road Norton Malton North Yorkshire YO17 9DS

Proposal: Erection of single storey extension to east elevation to form a boiler room following 

the previously approved demolition of existing extensions.
_______________________________________________________________________________________________

51.

Application No: 17/00879/LBC Decision:  Approval

Parish: Norton Town Council

Applicant: Willow Developments (Mr Wayne Butler)

Location: Leat House 71 Welham Road Norton Malton North Yorkshire YO17 9DS

Proposal: Erection of single storey extension to east elevation to form a boiler room following 

the previously approved demolition of existing extensions.
_______________________________________________________________________________________________

52.

Application No: 17/00880/ADV Decision:  Approval

Parish: Pickering Town Council

Applicant: Eastgate Fisheries (Mr Marcus Jeffrey)

Location: Eastgate Fisheries 79 Eastgate Pickering North Yorkshire YO18 7DY

Proposal: Installation of internally illuminated fascia sign following the removal of existing 

signage and lighting.Page 80



_______________________________________________________________________________________________

53.

Application No: 17/00886/HOUSE Decision:  Approval

Parish: Nunnington Parish Council

Applicant: Mr Andrew Wood

Location: Hall Garth  Ings Lane To West Ness Muscoates Nunnington Kirkbymoorside YO62 

5XE

Proposal: Erection of single storey extension to west elevation, cat slide dormer to north 

elevation and replacement of windows.
_______________________________________________________________________________________________

54.

Application No: 17/00912/HOUSE Decision:  Approval

Parish: Sherburn Parish Council

Applicant: Mr Alan Bridges

Location: 2 Eastbeck Close Sherburn Malton YO17 8PU

Proposal: Installation of 4no. rooflights to west elevation roofslope.
_______________________________________________________________________________________________

55.

Application No: 17/00914/HOUSE Decision:  Approval

Parish: Sand Hutton Parish Council

Applicant: Mr David Black

Location: Woodside Farm Main Street Sand Hutton Malton North Yorkshire YO41 1LB

Proposal: Erection of detached timber garage
_______________________________________________________________________________________________

Page 81



  

 
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate 

 
 

 

Appeal Decision 
Site visit made on 25 July 2017 

by A A Phillips  BA (Hons) DipTP MTP MRTPI 

an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government 

Decision date: 24 August 2017 

 
Appeal Ref: APP/Y2736/W/17/3166683 

Old Manor Farm, Main Road, Helperthorpe, Malton, North Yorkshire YO17 
8TQ 

 The appeal is made under section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 

against a refusal to grant approval required under Schedule 2, Part 3, Class Q of the 

Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015.  

 The appeal is made by Ms Lynne Porter against the decision of Ryedale District Council. 

 The application Ref 16/01823/GPAGB, dated 31 October 2016, was refused by notice 

dated 9 December 2016. 

 The development proposed is the change of use of agricultural buildings to form 1 no. 

four bedroom dwelling and 2 no. one bedroom dwellings (Use Class C3).  
 

Decision 

1. The appeal is dismissed. 

Procedural Matter 

2. The description of the proposed development on the application form is for 

‘conversion of existing buildings forming two sides of an existing fold yard in a 
traditional farm complex.  A row of single storey stables and stores is to be 

converted into two 1 bed cottages and a higher building (currently a granary 
and hayloft) will be converted to provide a 4 bed house.  The existing farm is 
well screened from neighbours and street by mature hedges and trees.  See 

also the block, site and floor plans’.  However, the description of the proposal 
on the Council’s decision notice is for ‘change of use of agricultural buildings to 

form 1 no. four bedroom dwelling and 2 no. one bedroom dwellings (Use Class 
C3)’.  I have used this latter description in the above heading as it accurately 
reflects the development for which prior approval is sought under Class Q of 

the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) 
Order 2015 (the 2015 GPDO).   

Main Issues 

3. Firstly, there is dispute as to whether the proposal meets the requirements of 
Class Q of the 2015 GPDO with particular reference to whether the curtilage 

falls within the definition in Part 3 X of the 2015 GPDO.  

4. Furthermore, for permitted development under Class Q (a) development 

consisting of a change of use of a building and any use within its curtilage from 
a use as an agricultural building to a use falling within Class C3 
(dwellinghouses) of the Schedule to the Use Classes Order  requires approval 

of five matters.  On the basis of the evidence before me the main issues in this 
case are whether the location and siting of the buildings makes it impractical or 

Page 82

Agenda Item 9

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate


Appeal Decision APP/Y2736/W/17/3166683 
 

 
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate                          2 

undesirable for the buildings to be changed to Class C3 dwellinghouses, in 

terms of whether future occupants would have suitable living conditions with 
particular reference to noise, odour and general disturbance, the effect on the 

living conditions of existing and future occupants of the site with particular 
reference to privacy and disturbance from vehicles passing in close proximity to 
the existing dwelling, whether the proposal makes suitable provision for 

parking and access and the effect of the proposal on ecology. 

Reasons 

Whether the proposal meets the requirements of Class Q 

5. The Council contends that if the access and parking areas associated with the 
proposed conversion were included within the curtilage of the properties the 

development would fail to be permitted under Schedule 2, Part 3 Class Q of the 
2015 GPDO.  This is due to the definition under Schedule 2, Part 3, Class X 

defining curtilage as ‘(a) a piece of land, whether enclosed or unenclosed, 
immediately beside or around the agricultural building, closely associated with 
and serving the purposes of the agricultural building, or (b) an area of land 

immediately beside or around the agricultural building no larger than the land 
area occupied by the agricultural building, whichever is the lesser’.  Although 

their position is not entirely clear it appears that the Council has taken this 
position because the proposed access and parking area shown on the 
application plans are separated from the agricultural buildings to be converted 

by the existing fold yard which lies between them.   

6. In this case the area of land identified for six car parking spaces (one disabled) 

and access is outside the application boundary.  Therefore, although it might 
reasonably be expected that the land in question would form part of the 
curtilage, or at least part of the application site, this is not the case and 

consequently it cannot be said that the proposed curtilage of the three 
properties falls outside the definition of curtilage as defined under Part 3, Class 

X of the 2015 GPDO.   

7. Consequently, on this issue I conclude that in these particular circumstances 
and on the basis of the evidence before me in this case the proposal does meet 

the requirements of Class Q of the 2015 GPDO with particular reference to 
whether the curtilage falls within the definition of curtilage in Part 3 X of the 

2015 GPDO. 

Ecology 

8. Circular 06/2005 states that the presence of a protected species is a material 

consideration when a development proposal is being considered which may 
result in harm to the species or its habitat.  It is essential that the presence or 

otherwise of protected species and the extent that it may be affected by the 
proposed development is established before permission is granted.  Ecological 

surveys should only be required where there is a reasonable likelihood of 
species being present and affected by the development. 

9. In this particular case, at the time of the determination of the prior approval 

application, it is my understanding that no protected species survey had been 
undertaken and submitted to the Council.  However, a scoping survey for 

protected species and habitats relating to the current proposal has been 
submitted with the appeal documentation.  No evidence of habitation by bats 

Page 83

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate


Appeal Decision APP/Y2736/W/17/3166683 
 

 
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate                          3 

was recorded in the scoping survey, either in hibernation or as a roosting or 

breeding site.  Consequently the survey concludes that the site has a low to 
medium potential for habitation by bats.   

10. However, the survey was undertaken in December and therefore has 
limitations.  In order to confirm the findings the survey concludes that an 
emergence survey should be carried out during the breeding season between 

May to August, inclusive.  To my knowledge no such emergence survey has yet 
been undertaken.  In my opinion exceptional circumstances have not been 

demonstrated and therefore conditioning further surveys would not be an 
appropriate course of action in this particular case.   

11. On the basis of the evidence before me I therefore consider there to be 

insufficient information to conclude at this stage that there is no reasonable 
likelihood of species being present.  Consequently, the proposal may have a 

harmful effect on ecological interests of the buildings in question.   

Location and siting 

12. The appeal site comprises an agricultural unit with a large modern agricultural 

building to the rear which would be situated adjacent to the proposed 
conversion of the existing granary building.  The future use of the modern 

agricultural building is not of significant concern in terms of the proposed 
Orchard Cottage and The Stables owing to there being sufficient distance 
between them to mitigate potential harm in terms of noise, odours  and 

general disturbance.  However, the building and the proposed Granary are in 
such close proximity to one another to warrant concern regarding the potential 

effects of future uses.  The appellant has stated that the small scale 
agricultural operations associated with the small holding of only approximately 
4.5 hectares in size will transfer to the modern general purpose building 

adjacent to the Granary dwelling.  I have also noted that the agricultural 
building in question would also be transferred to the appellant’s daughter who 

is proposed to be the first occupant of the adjacent Granary.  

13. The appellant contends that the odours, noise and general disturbance would 
be relatively minimal and acceptable within this particular location and that 

intensive agricultural uses are not likely to take place at any time in the future.  
At my site visit there appeared to be very little agricultural activity on site and 

if that situation continues the effect of such activity on the proposed conversion 
is likely to be relatively insignificant.   

14. It has also been suggested that in line with the approach taken by a previous 

Inspector on a different case a suitably worded planning condition could be 
attached to any permission which could restrict intensive agricultural 

operations and the storage of silage, dangerous machinery or chemicals in the 
modern agricultural building.  I also understand from the appellant that the 

building is not suitable for livestock in its current form and I have no evidence 
to dispute otherwise.  I do not consider that a condition restricting the use of 
an agricultural building for non-agricultural purposes would be reasonable; 

however, I do consider that in the specific circumstances of this case, in the 
event of allowing the appeal, it would be appropriate to restrict the use of the 

building in order to ensure it is not used for intensive livestock or agricultural 
operations and other activities likely to be prejudicial to the living conditions of 
potential future occupants of the granary conversion.   

Page 84

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate


Appeal Decision APP/Y2736/W/17/3166683 
 

 
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate                          4 

15. The appellant contends that the agricultural building, associated land and the 

Granary would be transferred to a family member who would be its first 
occupant and that such an arrangement would mitigate potential harm from 

adjacent residential and agricultural activities associated with the small 
holding.  I agree with the Council’s assertion that the current application 
cannot be used to control the transfer of ownership of land or buildings.  

However, a condition could be used in the event of granting permission which 
restricts the occupancy of the Granary and other proposed residential 

properties to the appellant or family members.  I consider that such an 
approach would be a reasonable way of mitigating any potential harm that may 
arise from conflicting adjacent uses. 

16. The proposed dwellings and Old Manor Farm would have a particularly close 
relationship to one another.  This would undoubtedly result in a degree of 

overlooking between the properties and adjacent private amenity spaces.  
Occupants would pass by and through the private amenity space of the existing 
property for access purposes resulting in overlooking and loss of privacy to an 

unacceptable degree.  There would also be potential overlooking into the 
properties from communal areas.  The effect of the proposal on the proposed 

Orchard Cottage, The Stables and the rear/side garden of Old Manor Farm is of 
particular concern, with the current proposal providing little privacy to each 
property.   However, I have noted the appellant’s intentions that the site is 

occupied communally by the extended family.  As such it is reasonable to 
accept reduced standards of privacy and, indeed, in this particular case family 

members would not necessarily expect the levels of privacy that may be 
expected in normal circumstances.  Therefore in the event of permission being 
granted an occupancy condition could be used to overcome this particular 

concern. 

17. The Council has also raised concerns relating to the effect of the development 

on the living conditions of existing occupants in terms of the disturbance from 
vehicles movements passing by the existing dwelling.  However, given the 
likely relatively low number of daily movements associated with two one 

bedroom dwellings and one four bedroom (including the living room / guest 
bedroom) dwelling I do not consider that sufficient disturbance would be likely 

to cause an unacceptable level of harm to the living conditions of existing 
occupants in terms of noise and disturbance from vehicle movements.   

18. I have noted that the area shown for six car parking spaces (one disabled) falls 

outside the application boundary.  Consequently, I have no evidence that the 
land in question would be available for allocated spaces for the proposed 

dwellings.  Therefore, there is no control over this land through the current 
application and, as such, a situation could arise where no parking or vehicular 

access is available to the dwellings. In this particular case it would not be 
appropriate for me to condition a legal agreement requiring there to be rights 
of access across the drive or guaranteeing access to parking, none of which 

would be within the dwellings’ curtilages based on the evidence before me. 

19. Consequently, a situation could arise where the residential proposed properties 

could be sold separately without having the benefit of car parking spaces or 
access.   

20. On the basis of the above I conclude that the location and siting of the 

buildings makes it impractical and undesirable for the buildings to be changed 

Page 85

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate


Appeal Decision APP/Y2736/W/17/3166683 
 

 
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate                          5 

to Class C3 dwelling houses as set out in paragraph Q.2 (1) of Part 3 of 

Schedule 2 of the 2015 GPDO, on the grounds that the proposal does not make 
suitable provision for parking and access. 

Other matters 

21. I have noted the family’s circumstances; however, I do not consider that these 
circumstances outweigh the harm that I have identified above.  I am also 

aware that an alternative proposal has been submitted to the Council, but this 
has no bearing on the current appeal before me. 

Conclusion 

22. For the reasons given above and taking into account other matters raised I 
conclude that the appeal should be dismissed.  

Alastair Phillips 

INSPECTOR 

 

Page 86

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate

	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	5 Schedule of Items to be determined by the Committee
	6 17/00567/FUL - Land off Moorfields Lane Wombleton
	2 - Site Location Plan
	3 - Site Layout Plan
	4 - Additional Plan
	5 - Proposed Plan 1
	6 - Proposed Plan 2
	7 - Design And Access Statement
	8 - Landscape assessment
	9 - Ecological assessment
	10 - Agent Letter

	8 List of Applications determined under delegated Powers.
	9 Update on Appeal Decisions

